
 

 

 
Wednesday, 5 May 2021 
 
To:   Members of the MCA - Local Enterprise Partnership and Appropriate Officers 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
You are hereby invited to a meeting of the Sheffield City Regional Local Enterprise 
Partnership  to be held at Virtual Meeting, on: Thursday, 13 May 2021 at 11.00 am for 
the purpose of transacting the business set out in the agenda. 
 

 
Dr Dave Smith 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 

 

You can view the agenda and papers 
at www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk  
or use a smart phone camera 
and scan the QR code: 

 
 

Public Document Pack

http://www.sheffieldcityregion.org.uk/


 

 

Member Distribution 
 
James Muir (Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Nigel Brewster (Vice-Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Lucy Nickson (Vice-Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Alexa Greaves Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Professor Chris Husbands Representative for Higher Education 
Gemma Smith Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Neil MacDonald Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Karen Beardsley Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Angela Foulkes Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Peter Kennan Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Cathy Travers Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Richard Stubbs Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Joe Chetcuti Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Tanwer Khan Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Bill Adams TUC Representative 
Professor Dave Petley University of Sheffield 
Michael Faulks Co-opted Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Paul Leedham Co-opted LEP Board Member 
Dan Fell Doncaster Chamber 
Councillor Chris Read Rotherham MBC 
Mayor Dan Jarvis MBE SCR Mayoral Combined Authority 
Councillor Bob Johnson Sheffield City Council 
Mayor Ros Jones CBE Doncaster MBC 
Councillor Sir Steve Houghton 
CBE 

Barnsley MBC 

 



 

 

 
MCA - Local Enterprise Partnership 
 

  
 

Thursday, 13 May 2021 at 11.00 am 
 
Venue: Virtual Meeting 

Agenda 
 

Agenda 
Ref No 

Subject Lead Page 
 

1.   Welcome and Apologies  James 
Muir 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

 In relation to any agenda item 

 In relation to any activity since the last formal 
meeting 

 In relation to any forthcoming activity 
 

James 
Muir 

 

3.   Notes of Last Meeting  James 
Muir 

5 - 12 

Strategic Development 

4.   Active Travel Plan - Progress Report  Pete 
Zanzottera, 
Dame 
Sarah 
Storey 

13 - 14 

5.   Supporting the Development of Employee 
Ownership - SCR Ownership Hub  

Helen 
Kemp 

15 - 22 

6.   Inclusion and Social Value in South Yorkshire  Felix 
Kumi-
Ampofo 

23 - 26 

7.   Government National Review of LEPs  Andy 
Gates 

27 - 30 

8.   Build Back Better - Plan for Growth  Felix 
Kumi-
Ampofo 

31 - 36 

9.   Improving business productivity - Regional Made 
Smarter programme  

Helen 
Kemp 

37 - 40 

10.   Action for Bids to the Community Renewal Fund  Andy 
Gates 

41 - 44 

11.   Local Growth Fund Update (Year end 2020/21 and 
2021/22 Programme Activity)  

Sue Sykes 45 - 50 

Governance 

12.   Mayoral Update  Mayor Dan 
Jarvis 

51 - 52 

13.   Chief Executive's Update  Dr Dave 
Smith 

53 - 54 



 

 

Date of next meeting: Thursday, 1 July 2021 at 11.00 am 
At:Sheffield City Region, 11 Broad Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ  



SCR - LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP 
 

 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON: 
 
THURSDAY, 11 MARCH 2021 AT 11.00 AM 
 
11 BROAD STREET WEST, SHEFFIELD S1 2BQ 
 

 

 
Present: 
 
James Muir (Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Nigel Brewster (Vice-Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Lucy Nickson (Vice-Chair) Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Alexa Greaves Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Professor Chris Husbands Representative for Higher Education 
Gemma Smith Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Neil MacDonald Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Peter Kennan Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Richard Stubbs Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Joe Chetcuti Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Bill Adams TUC Representative 
Professor Dave Petley University of Sheffield 
Michael Faulks Co-opted Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Paul Leedham Co-Opted LEP Board Member 
Dan Fell Doncaster Chamber 
Councillor Chris Read Rotherham MBC 
Mayor Dan Jarvis MBE SCR Mayoral Combined Authority 
Mayor Ros Jones CBE Doncaster MBC 
 
Officers in Attendance: 
 
  
Dr Dave Smith Chief Executive MCA Executive Team 
Dr Ruth Adams Deputy Chief Executive MCA Executive Team 
Helen Kemp Director of Business & Skills MCA Executive Team 
Gareth Sutton Chief Finance Officer/S73 

Officer 
MCA Executive Team 

Mark Lynam Director of Transport, Housing 
and Infrastructure 

MCA Executive Team 

Mel McCoole (Minute Taker)  
 
Apologies: 
 
Karen Beardsley Private Sector LEP Board Member 
Cathy Travers Private Sector LEP Board Member 
 
1 Welcome and Apologies 

 
 The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

An apology for absence was noted as above. 
 

2 Declarations of Interest 
 

 None. 
 

3 Notes of Last Meeting 
 

 The notes of the previous meeting were agreed to be an accurate record. 
 

4 Business Pipeline 
 

 A report was presented which recommended a selection of 13 identified 
schemes onto the pipeline in order that Business Cases may be developed.   
 
A report had been presented to the last Board meeting to request entry onto 
the pipeline for 13 projects in relation to new inward investment enquiries and 
growth plans of existing indigenous businesses across a range of sectors.  
Work continued through the Business Growth Board and the Co-Chairs of the 
Business Growth Board who were kept updated on the progress made. 
 
J Muir commended the manner in which the report had been produced and the 
rational put forward for a ‘business as usual’ approach to the more proactive 
approach to combine the aspects of creating a much stronger eco pipeline.  He 
expressed his gratitude to Mayor Jones CBE and N MacDonald for the time 
that they had allocated as Co-Chairs of the Business Growth Board to be 
provided with briefings on the aspects of each of the pipeline projects. 
 
Work was underway to develop an improved system to brief the Co-Chairs 
moving forward, to enable them to become part of the non-disclosure 
agreement and to provide them with a more detailed briefing prior to discussion 
and evaluation of the Business Cases at their respective thematic boards. 
 
P Kennan referred to a number of the projects which were business related and 
also related to other thematic boards i.e. SCR Transport and the Environment 
Board.  He queried whether there was a mechanism to enable the briefings to 
be provided to members of those boards without breaching any 
confidentialities. 
 
J Muir appreciated the comment raised by P Kennan.  Work was underway in 
an attempt to merge the pipeline projects that were both infrastructional and 
business growth in nature, to enable an oversight with an ultimate goal to 
create a pipeline on all projects overtime that all Members could review, without 
compromising the non-disclosure and confidentiality agreements. 
 
In response to a question received from D Fell regarding how the Board 
members could help to deliver further, J Muir urged D Fell to contact him if he 
had a particular area of interest and expertise that he was interested in 
engaging in further. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Board:- 
 

Page 6



 

i) Noted the update on the on-going development of the business pipeline. 
 

ii) Accepted the schemes detailed in section 2.1 – 2.6 and Appendix A of the 
report to the programme pipeline, noting that projects would only be 
supported if future funding was received and assurance requirements were 
met. 

 
5 LGF Mid-term Evaluation 

 
 A report was submitted which presented the findings from the Mid-Term 

Evaluation.  There was a requirement of the Department for Business, Energy 
and Industrial Strategy for LEPs to undertake an impact evaluation of the 2015-
21 LGF Programme.  The impact evaluation of the SCR LGF programme would 
be delivered in two parts i.e. a Mid-Term Evaluation and an Ex-Post Evaluation.  
It was not intended to commence the Ex-Post Evaluation until 2022, to enable a 
significant amount of time to be spent with the Board Members to understand 
some of the issues raised by the Mid-Term Evaluation and analysis.  This 
would enable the development of what was required within the Ex-Post 
Evaluation and how to test the benefits that the region had accrued as a result 
of the £367m investment.   
 
Following today’s meeting, work would commence to drill down into the 
messages within the report by theme for the thematic boards as the new 
investment priorities were developed. 
 
The following key findings were identified from the report:- 
 

 Approximately 6 years ago, the Local Growth Fund had invited all LEPs to 
competitively bid for a share of £12bn, which had followed the work across 
the country for the development of the Strategic Economic Plans.  The 
2014-2020 Strategic Economic Plan had been the basis for the submission 
of the SCR bid. 

 A total of £363.7m had been awarded to the LEP for three Growth Deals, 
which included £42m for a retained major transport scheme in Rotherham. 

 It was anticipated that £48.8m of match funding would be generated for 
Housing Intervention Fund Projects by 2025. 

 Members noted the economic benefits achieved to date as a result of the 
investment, together with the economic benefits forecast to be achieved by 
2025. 

 Members were referred to the suite of outputs that would be delivered, 
which would be monitored and reported to the Government. 

 
J Muir commented that whilst he applauded the way in which the matters were 
reviewed on a custom job basis, he considered that this raised issues where 
matters were reviewed one dimensionally.  He encouraged the impact on lost 
productively to be considered, as this was a key argument that could be 
supported from a business perspective. 
 
Dr Adams stated that such issues would be built into the greater analysis as the 
data was reviewed within the report, and as the final evaluation and benefits 
were scoped out. 
 

Page 7



 

P Kennan referred to the context of the report in relation to the lessons learnt 
and what could be taken forwards into the future projects.  He referred to the 
summary conclusions section of the report, in particular the capacity, financial 
ability of the private sector to develop business cases, the need for regular 
workshops to educate people in terms of the new funding programmes, and the 
ability to celebrate and raise awareness of what had been achieved.  He 
queried whether these issues could be captured by the LEP. 
 
In response, J Muir commented that this was an evolving model which required 
a great deal of emphasis in order to understand how it should be measured in 
the future.  He suggested that there was a distillation of the learning within the 
relevant areas of the thematic boards to consult with the Co-Chairs to 
determine how they wished to evaluate within their thematic area in the future.  
He expressed his thanks to Dr Adams for summarising the report. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Board:- 
 

i) Noted the findings of the Mid-Term Evaluation report. 
 

ii) Considered the costed methodology for the Ex-Post Evaluation. 
 

6 Assurance Framework 
 

 A report was submitted which summarised the amendments that had been 
incorporated into the Assurance Framework, which was presented for 
consideration by the Board.  The MCA and LEP were required each year to 
update and publish an Assurance Framework to outline the robust, transparent 
and effective governance arrangements that were in place.  Following 
devolution, there was a requirement for the Assurance Framework to be 
approved by the four Government departments. 
 
As agreed at the last Board meeting, N McDonald, Chair of the Assurance 
Panel, had undertaken a full review of the Assurance Framework.  Members 
were referred to the amendments that had been made to the document, as 
highlighted within the report.  The Assurance Framework now included the 
structure of the new thematic boards.   
 
Members were made aware of one change to the published version of the 
Assurance Framework in relation to the equality/gender balance.  The current 
version of the Assurance Framework stated that it was an aspiration that the 
private sector membership would be equally split 50/50 on a gender basis by 
2023.  The Government had since stated that this would apply to all LEP 
membership and not just private sector membership. 
 
J Muir expressed his appreciation and thanks to N MacDonald for the work 
undertaken in supporting the process with Dr Adams. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Board:- 
 

i) Noted at Section 2.3 of the report, the key amendments that had been 
made to the Assurance Framework to ensure compliance with the 
Government’s requirements. 

Page 8



 

 
ii) Considered and endorsed the updated Assurance Framework as set out 

in Appendix 1 to the report. 
 

7 Mayoral Update 
 

 A report was submitted which provided Members with an update on key 
Mayoral activity which related to the economic agenda. 
 
Updates were provided on:- 
 

 The Covid-19 pandemic. 

 Integrated Rail Plan for the North and Midlands. 

 Improving local public transport. 

 Protecting people from flooding. 
 
On behalf of Mayor Jarvis MBE, D Smith informed Members of the following 
additional items:- 
 

 The Government had today announced the £137m contract to upgrade the 
Hope Valley rail line between Manchester and Sheffield.  Mayor Jarvis 
MBE had keenly pressed the issue with members of the Transport Board 
and others over a sustained period of time. 

 Mayor Jarvis MBE had wished to express his disappointment in the 
outcome of the Chancellor’s budget, particularly in relation to the levelling 
up fund prioritisation, which had left South Yorkshire under-funded.  The 
budget had not recognised South Yorkshire at the level that it was 
considered it should have been, in terms of the levels of need within the 
power communities and communities of interest. 

 Members recalled that the MCA papers that would be published on 12 
March 2021 would include the investment strategy to gainshare.  Once 
published, Mayor Jarvis MBE would provide the Board Members with a 
briefing on the investment strategy.  Following which, D Smith would 
provide the Board Members with further detailed briefings. 

 
RESOLVED – That Members noted the update. 
 

8 Chief Executive's Update 
 

 A report was submitted which provided Members with a general update on the 
activity being undertaken by the LEP outside of the agenda items under 
discussion. 
 
Updates were provided on:- 
 

 South Yorkshire Freeport bid. 

 Chambers of Commerce Skills Roundtables. 

 India Roundtable events. 

 Covid-19 Business Input Group. 

 LEP Peer Review. 
 
Dr Smith provided Members with the advance notice that the LEP Board AGM 

Page 9



 

which was scheduled to be held in June/July 2021, would be held physically 
within the public domain.  Consideration would be given to the items for 
discussion at the meeting and to address holding the physical meeting. 
 
A Gates provided Members with a briefing on the outcome of the Chancellor’s 
budget.  Members noted the following key points:- 
 

 The macro economic outlook for the OBR had offered a much more benign 
outlook for the UK economy in comparison to previous modelling.  The pre-
pandemic level for the economic output was expected to be reached in 
approximately 18 months’ time. 

 The budget had confirmed continued financial support for individuals and 
businesses during the pandemic. 

 Investment in places had included a total of £1bn for 45 new Towns Deals, 
which included Goldthorpe (Barnsley) and Stocksbridge (Sheffield). 

 Confirmation had been given to the devolution of major capital transport 
funding from 2022 onwards, to be allocated over a 5 year period which 
would be a significant proportion of transport investment funding. 

 Both the Job Support Scheme and the Self-Employed Income Scheme had 
been extended. 

 A total of £126m additional funding would be made available for 40,000 
further traineeships in England for 16 - 24 year olds. 

 The UK Infrastructure Bank had been capitalised with £12bn to finance 
green infra. 

 From 2022 - 23, investment of £4.2bn would be made for the 5 year intra-
city transport settlements for eight city regions which included the SCR. 

 The medium-longer term would be set within the Spending Review which 
would be undertaken later on during the year. 

 
Members would be provided with a copy of the presentation slides. 
 
L Nickson queried whether there were any plans for the Board meetings to 
return to physical meetings, and the format of the meetings over the next 6 
month period. 
 
J Muir stated that the format of the Board meetings would continue to be held 
digitally. 
 
Dr Smith added that the only cavate to holding the Board meetings digitally was 
the requirement to hold the AGM within the public domain.  The Covid-19 
legislation, which allowed the MCA meetings to be held virtually, would shortly 
conclude and the Government had expressed the intention for this not to 
continue.  Clarity would be sought on the matter. 
 
RESOLVED – That Members noted the update. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 

 
I, the undersigned, confirm that this is a true and accurate record of the meeting. 
 
Signed  

 
Name 

 

 
Position 

 

 
Date 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
1. Introduction 

 
 1.1 Since the appointment of Dame Sarah Storey as the Active Travel Commissioner in April 

2019 the work area has developed apace, and in June 2020 the Active Travel 
Implementation Plan (ATIP) was adopted by the MCA.  
 

2. Proposal and justification  
 

 2.1 The Commissioner will present to the Board 

• The Active Travel strategy and programme 

• Progress to date  

• What to expect in 2021/22 
The presentation will be circulated to members in advance of the meeting. 
 

 2.2 The Board will be invited to discuss the issues with the Active Travel Commissioner. 
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 This paper is for information and does not require a Board decision, and therefore no 
alternative approaches are included 
 
 
 
 

Purpose of Report 
 
For the Active Travel Commissioner to update the Board about progress in the first two years of the 
programme and outline priorities for the coming year.   
 
Thematic Priority 
 
Cross-cutting 
 
Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
This paper will be available under the SCR Publication Scheme. 

 
Recommendations 
 
That LEP Board Members: 

• Note the contents of the presentation. 

• Discuss the issues 
 

13th May 2021 
 

Active Travel Update 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
There are no direct financial implications from this paper. 
 

 4.2 Legal 
There are no direct legal implications from this paper. 
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
There are risks associated with implementation of the Active Travel Plans, but these are 
far outweighed by the risks of not progressing. 
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
The implementation of Active Travel extends travel choice and alternatives to many more 
people than are currently included in travel provision. 
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 Active Travel is developing a new communications plan for 2021/22. This paper is part of 
that process and seeks input from the LEP Board in helping communicate.  
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  None 
 

 
Report Author  Pete Zanzottera 

Post Active Travel Project Director 
Officer responsible Martin Swales  

Organisation Sheffield City Region MCA Executive 
Email  

Telephone  
 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street 
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 
 
 

Page 14



1. Introduction

1.1 Cooperatives UK and the Employee Ownership Association ran an application process in 
November 2020 to identify a partner authority to run an Ownership Hub pilot. The purpose 
of the Ownership Hub is to raise awareness of the benefits of employee and worker 
ownership at a national level. 

1.2 The SCR hub will receive support and resources to run an intervention to grow employee 
and worker ownership across the region which benefits individuals, businesses and the 
wider community through a fairer, more inclusive and resilient regional economy and 
supports the policy position of the SEP and emerging Inclusion Strategy for South 
Yorkshire. SCR was successful in securing the hub against other large Mayoral Combined 
Authority areas and it will be the only pilot to operate. 

2. Proposal and justification

2.1 It is proposed that the Ownership Hub will sit within the SCRMCA Gateway Service with a 
training programme implemented to provide Gateway and Business Advisors with the 
knowledge to explore employee ownership opportunities with businesses. This will be 

Purpose of Report 

This report outlines the successful bid that was made to the Cooperatives UK and Employee 
Ownership Association to become a partner in the pilot Ownership Hub. 

Thematic Priority 

Cross Cutting – the Ownership Hub will provide an additional element of business support that can: 
1. Ensure new businesses receive the support they need to flourish.
2. Facilitate and proactively support growth amongst existing firms.
3. Develop the SCR skills base, labour mobility and education performance

Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

This paper will be available under the MCA Publication Scheme.  

Recommendations 

That LEP Board Members: 

• are invited to discuss the content and approach to the proposals for the Sheffield City Region
Ownership Hub and

• are asked to consider the appointment of a private sector Board Member to lead the
development of a business reference group.

13 May 2021 

Supporting the Development of Employee Ownership – SCR Ownership Hub 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



 

supported by a dedicated Hub Co-ordinator role and additional resources from 
Cooperatives UK and the Employee Ownership Association. 
 

 2.2 Within the Sheffield City Region there are a number of existing successful employee 
owned businesses and cooperatives that have developed valuable experience and insight 
of these business operating models. Working with a cohort of these businesses to help 
promote the employee owned business model, the work of the ownership hub and to 
mentor businesses moving to employee ownership would be a valuable asset for the 
project. On this basis, the LEP Board Members are asked to consider the appointment of a 
private sector board member to lead the development of a business reference group. 
 

 2.3 The SCRMCA will contribute by: 
 

• hosting the Hub Co-ordinator 

• promoting the Ownership Hub and embedding the employee ownership model and 
support into the existing business support offered across the region 

• utilising its networks across South Yorkshire to promote the Hub and 
 

mapping the wider interventions in business support and skills development that can 
support businesses to adopt an employee ownership model. 
 

 2.4 In terms of governance arrangements, it is proposed that the oversight of the Ownership 
Hub sits within the remit of the Business Recovery and Growth Board with the Board 
receiving regular reports on progress with implementation and performance against KPIs. 
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 Do nothing – this would mean the loss of opportunity for Sheffield City Region startups and 
established businesses to benefit from the support the Ownership Hub provides in 
developing an Employee Ownership or Co-operative business model. If this approach was 
not fully engaged the region would be missing opportunities to deliver on its commitments 
to support inclusion and inclusive growth and the core strategic policies, the Strategic 
Economic Plan (SEP) and the Renewal Action Plan (RAP). The SEP for example will 
include a commitment to “promote cooperatives and other social enterprises to ensure that 
benefits are more directly linked to SCR residents.” Its key intervention areas include: 
“Enhancing innovation led community wealth building through the support and advocacy of 
cooperatives and other community ownership models.” 
 

 3.2 Do more – this programme is a pilot scheme and the design of the programme will be 
focussed on stretched but realistically achievable outcomes, increasing the scope at this 
pilot stage would be a delivery risk with potential reputational issues. 
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
The programme will be delivered from existing resources and budgets. A part-time 
Ownership Hub role will be funded directly by Cooperatives UK. 
 

 4.2 Legal 
A memorandum of understanding will be developed between SCRMCA and Cooperatives 
UK. 
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
The programme will operate a risk register and is supported by a project manager from 
with Cooperatives UK. 
 

Page 16



 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
The principle of the Ownership Hub is to support inclusion and inclusive growth. 
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 A marketing and communications plan for the programme is in development with a shared 
input from SCRMCA, Cooperatives UK and Employee Ownership Association. 
 
The announcement of the SCR success in being chosen as the pilot Ownership Hub has 
been delayed in consideration of Purdah and to allow sufficient time for Cooperatives UK 
to establish a web information hub to support the launch of the project. It is likely that an 
announcement will be made mid-June. 
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  The Ownership Hub Prospectus 
 

 
Report Author  Helen Kemp 

Post Director of Business and Skills 
Officer responsible Helen Kemp 

Organisation Mayoral Combined Authority Executive 
Email Helen.kemp@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 

Telephone 07394 400664 
 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street 
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
 

  
 
Other sources and references: 
 
 

Page 17

mailto:Helen.kemp@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Grow resilient and 
inclusive businesses 
in your city or region 

Delivered by:

We’re looking for Combined Authorities, Local Enterprise Partnerships 
and Local Authorities to become Ownership Hub Partners to encourage 
and support employee and worker ownership in your region.

We bring funding, ownership training, advice and expertise – matched  
by your local connections, networks and professional knowledge.

Together we can lead the way in creating new  
business owners.

Talk to us now to find out more. Email  
Ownership Hub Programme Manager – 
john.forbes@uk.coop

Worker-owners at Edinburgh Bicycle CooperativePage 19



Build a fairer and more  
resilient regional economy 
Increasing employee and worker ownership benefits individuals, businesses 
and the wider community through a fairer, more inclusive and resilient 
regional economy.  

Businesses that give employees a stake and a say are evidenced as increasing 
productivity, powered by more engaged employees.   

They also root jobs in your region for the longer term, playing a key role 
in ‘levelling up’. 

Covid-19 has added further strain on already struggling economies and has 
revealed how business has not always been working in the best interests  
of everyone. 

Key workers have been essential to powering us through the health crisis. 
There is now an opportunity, through ownership, to engage and unite many 
more employees behind a common purpose, and in doing so, help the UK to 
Build Back Better. 

The Ownership Hub partnership offer

Richer Sounds has transferred ownership to its employees

Page 20



What is the Ownership Hub?
The Ownership Hub raises awareness of the benefits of employee and worker 
ownership at a national level. We provide support and resources to run an 
intervention to grow employee and worker ownership in an economic region.

We champion and enable people to adopt a business model that is highly flexible, 
covering everything from farming to web design, manufacturing to couriering, 
from pubs and restaurants to acting and accounting.

As an Ownership Partner we will support your region to address the knowledge, 
awareness and advocacy gap for employee and worker ownership with key 
regional economic partners, business founders and advisers.

We reach and train business advisors, accountants, lawyers and banks, who advise 
entrepreneurs and business owners how to start, scale up or convert a business to 
employee and worker ownership.

The Ownership Hub is a joint project between Co-operatives UK and the  
Employee Ownership Association.

It supports the #1millionowners campaign which aims to create 1 million 
employee owners in the UK by 2030 – a fivefold increase in the current market.

The Ownership Hub partnership offer

Richer Sounds has transferred ownership to its employees

Suma Wholefoods is one of the largest worker co-ops in Europe

Page 21



The Ownership Hub partnership offer

www.uk.coop/OwnershipHub

What we can offer
Ownership expertise to develop the skills and capability to support  
the development of more employee and worker ownership.

A package of training for the business support and adviser networks  
in your region. 

An awareness campaign to let people and business know about the 
Ownership Hub, and how to access the support available. 

Employment of an Ownership Hub Co-ordinator, working at your  
local Growth Hub or based with you in local government.

The digital hub – an online resource for entrepreneurs, established 
businesses exploring succession, and legal and financial advisors to  
access all the information they need to explore and support employee 
and worker ownership.

A bespoke support package for businesses starting up or transitioning to 
employee and worker ownership.

 

Our asks
A commitment to promoting employee and worker ownership at every 
level of your region, and in every sphere of influence. 

The aim of a major expansion in employee and worker ownership, via 
start-ups and conversions, as part of inclusive growth/recovery priorities 
in your economic strategies.

To speak to established local businesses, Growth Hubs, start-ups and 
entrepreneurs in your area.

Office space for our Ownership Hub Co-ordinator to work from, 
somewhere close to local council, the LEP or your Growth Hub.

A financial and in-kind commitment from you in supporting the aims 
listed above.

 

Want to get involved?
We will be running an application process and aim to announce  
our first Ownership Hub partner region(s) in November 2020.

To express an interest in applying or to find out more, email the 
Ownership Hub Programme Manager – john.forbes@uk.coop 

Sheffield manufacturer Gripple 
is 100% employee owned

Page 22



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
1. 

 
Introduction 
 

 1.1 The SEP set out the strategic outcomes of creating a fairer, stronger and greener 
economy. Inclusivity is integral to achieving these objectives. Work is commencing to 
develop what is in scope of the Inclusion Plan, considering both longer term trajectories 
and the immediate issues facing South Yorkshire in the wake of the Covid-19 pandemic. 
The desire is for the Inclusion Plan to be action-oriented, with outcomes focused on 
making a real difference to South Yorkshire’s people and places. 
 

 1.2 As part of the implementation of more inclusive growth strategies,  the Plan will set out 
outcomes for different areas of focus. Whilst the exact scope of the Plan is still to be 
finalised and agreed following discussions with the LEP Board, MCA and Mayor, one key 
outcome will be on social value outcomes.   
 

 1.3 Social value is referenced in the SEP; the SEP outlining a desire to maximise the impact 
on our people and places from investment, be this at a more macro regional level or with 
a deal done with an individual business.  The RAP also highlights the importance of social 
value in recovering from the economic fallout of the pandemic, and the MCA has 

Purpose of Report 

Inclusion is one of the three pillars of the economic plan, seeking to grow the economy of South 
Yorkshire but in a more inclusive and sustainable way.  Following the publication of the Strategic 
Economic Plan (SEP) and the Renewal Action Plan (RAP), work is commencing on the inclusivity 
pillar. This report outlines the importance of inclusivity and achieving greater societal value as an 
integral element of the growth programme and is seeking the engagement of LEP Board Members to 
discuss and consider elements of the Inclusion Plan and social value outcomes which could be the 
focus for this work. There will be a brief presentation at the meeting. 

Thematic Priority 

Cross-cutting across all thematic priorities. 

Freedom of Information  

This paper will be made available under the MCA Publication Scheme.  

Recommendations 

LEP Board Members are asked to: 

1. Review the content of the report and share their priorities for the scope of the Inclusion Plan 
and Social Value outcomes, to aid the next phase of detailed development. 
 

13th May 2021 

Inclusion & Social Value In South Yorkshire 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



 

committed to the principle that investment has to return good social and economic value.  
Efforts to deliver the SEP and RAP objectives, and achieving economic change for South 
Yorkshire, will not be successful without embedding inclusivity and social value in 
prioritised activity.  
 

 1.4 The outcomes and indicators in Section 9 of the SEP align with the National Themes 
Outcomes and Measures (TOMs) Framework and are already in operation. Work is 
underway to develop options considering how to embed social value outcomes and 
enhanced inclusion within the MCA’s operations, procurement and interventions  and/or 
funded activity delivered by stakeholders and partners.   
 

2. Proposal and justification  
 

 2.1 What do we mean by inclusion and social value? 
Inclusion and social value are terms which mean different things in different settings.  
Inclusion is sometimes used interchangeably with inequality, the perception being that 
greater inclusivity may result in a lessening on inequalities. It is often linked to income or 
wealth, but there are divisions beyond material standards of living, such as in health, 
education and social mobility, as well as between gender, race, age, geography and 
social groups.   
 
Social value can be a narrow or broad term referring to the Corporate Social 
Responsibility activities of an organisation, such as procurement policies or standards and 
values set by an organisation or project on how to address socio-economic difference 
within the local community. It is also used to describe how to achieve greater value 
through whatever an entity is engaged in, for the benefit of the wider society or particular 
groups.  
 

 2.2 The proposed approach to achieving greater inclusion and embedding social value 
outcomes 
Noting the need for enhanced evidence to guide this work, support is being commissioned 
for the three following activities:  
 

• Development of an evidence base which identifies key challenges, definitions, 
scope and the potential framework for the Inclusion Plan. 

• Exploring the extent, scope and potential for community wealth building in South 
Yorkshire and the key outcomes and actions which can drive this.  

• Piloting different approaches to obtaining more participatory democracy and 
engaging partners and communities in more meaningful ways. 

 
The Inclusion Plan is potentially very broad in scope, and some parts will need to be 
progressed more quickly than others.  As a result, a modular approach is being developed 
to sequence the work and ensure that the scope and priorities remain manageable but 
ambitious. 
 

 2.3 Potential scope for the work 
The LEP Board are asked to consider its views on the proposed scope of this work, the 
following suggested priorities are all being considered as part of the suggested modular 
approach to developing the Inclusion Plan, agreeing the focus will aid in commissioning 
the additional research and evidence based required:  
 

• Agreeing the local definitions of inclusion as the key starting point to share scope; 

• Inclusion through improved health and wellbeing outcomes; 

• Inclusion through educational attainment and aspiration improvements; 

• Increasing opportunities for community wealth building; 

• Delivering greater environmental benefits whenever possible. 

Page 24



 

• Inclusive innovation by enabling more people to propose innovative ideas and 
participate in decision-making and ensuring that the general public benefits from 
innovation that is partly or wholly funded with public monies.  

• Growth of cooperatives and other employee ownership business models. 

• Driving and maximising social value in all business support deals – examples of 
this could be an employer charter or pledge and creating a social value contract 
that businesses sign-up to. 

• Designing social value into all of our investments and interventions 

• Driving social value through the MCA’s procurement processes – such as 
procuring from local organisations where possible or from organisations which 
have inclusive employment, social or environmental policies and practices in place 
that reflect the SEP and RAP’s ambitions. 
 

 2.4 What could a Social Value Contract or Employers Charter look like?  
A significant amount of work has already taken place with Local Authorities, businesses 
and partners, including the TUC, to review examples of policies and good practice. One 
element that is referenced in the SEP about reciprocity in business deals and that is a 
central principle agreed by the Education, Skills and Employment Board for the future 
Skills Bank, is the development of a South Yorkshire Social Value Contract or Employers 
Charter. The issues this raises which require Board input are:   
 

• How should LEP/MCA work with businesses to enable this culture shift to drive 
greater inclusivity and social value outcomes? 

• What should be the scope of a Social Value Contract or Employers Charter? For 
example, a living wage, career progression of employees, talent retention, and 
skills development. 

• How else could businesses engage with their local community?  Such as with 
schools, broadening their recruitment to provide apprenticeship places, work 
experience placements or paid internships, innovative HR approaches etc?  

• Can/should busineses be encouraged/incentivised to recruit from deprived areas? 

• Can/should employers be encouraged/incentivised to commit further to improving 
the health and wellbeing of their staff and the wider local community? 

• What else could a Social Value Contract or Employers Charter include?   
 

 2.5 LEP Board and MCA members are integral to steering this work and views are invited on 
the above proposals and any other related issues that need to be explored further as part 
of this. 
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 Do nothing.  The MCA and LEP could opt not to develop an Inclusion Plan and the 
various modules / elements arising from this, including the Social Value Contract or 
Employers Charter. This option could see the promotion of existing charters and pledges.  
This option has been discounted as the SEP makes a commitment to the development of 
the thinking and actions for local Inclusive and Sustainable Growth.    
 

 3.2 Do Something / Minimum – The decision could be to pursue a range of tactical 
approaches, eg an Employer Charter, Procurement strategies driving greater local spend 
and social value, Co-operative business support etc Without the Inclusion Plan defining 
the priorities of decision makers and interoggating the evidence and potential social 
challenges these activities will not be grounded or sustained impact is likely to suffer. 
 

 3.3 Do more – The breadth of inclusivity could see the Plan being so vast and all 
incompassing that the evidence phase, analysis phase and planning phase could take 
considerable time and resource to pull together. In the wake of the pandemic this is felt to 

Page 25



 

be undesirable, hence opting for the modular approach where early priority can be given 
to a smaller number of elements, with others to follow. 
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
The business planning and budgeting process, has allocated resource to support the 
development of the inclusion plan. As the proposal develops, decisions will be required 
regarding activities, interventions and collaborations.  
 

 4.2 Legal 
There are no specific legal implications arising from this work at this time.  Subsequent 
reports on progress will identify any legal implications if and when they arise.  
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
The major risk from this work at this time are: 

• Scope too ill-defined leading to a lack of focus on the deployment of resource and 
effort if too many priorities are initially identified;  

• Evidence of impact of the pandemic are not fully known on people, businesses 
and places and therefore the Plan may not fully embed this analysis. 

 
 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  

The Inclusion Plan will enhance equality, diversity and social inclusion through activities 
funded by the MCA and activities that are funded and delivered by partner organisations. 
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 The workshops and set-piece sessions will be promoted to partners and the input of 
organisations and communities will be actively sought throughout the development of this 
work. 
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  None 
 
REPORT AUTHOR  Felix Kumi-Ampofo 
POST  Assistant Director – Policy and Assurance  

Officer responsible Dr Dave Smith 
Organisation Sheffield City Region 

Email Dave.smith@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 
Telephone 0114 220 1849 

 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 
 

 

Page 26

mailto:Dave.smith@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1. Introduction 

 
 1.1 The government set out a commitment at the March 2021 Budget to work with local 

businesses and Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs) on the evolution of LEPs. The intent of 
the review is to ensure local businesses have clear representation and support in their area, 
in order to drive the recovery.  
 
The Government have committed to working with Local Enterprise Partnerships over the 
coming months, with a view to announcing more detailed plans ahead of summer recess. 
This includes consideration of Local Enterprise Partnerships' form, function and 
geographies to best support productivity and growth locally. 
 

 1.2 Key issues driving the Review: 
 

- Governance and geography: The Government was always likely to seek changes to 
the national LEP model. There are differences in the way LEPs operate across the 
country. This poses particular challenges in areas without well-established Combined / 
Mayoral Combined Authorities and inconsistent and / or poorly aligned economic 
geographies. The review will consider how LEPs could work alongside MCA’s – 
recognising that some LEPs are already intertwined in MCA’s. 

Purpose of Report 
 
This report sets out the key elements of the Government’s review of Local Enterprise Partnerships, 
highlights the key elements as they are likely to impact on the work of the LEP and updates the Board 
on how the LEP is actively engaged in informing the review.  
 
Thematic Priority 
 
The contents of this report are cross-cutting across all the LEP’s thematic priority areas.  

Freedom of Information  

This paper will be available under the MCA Publication Scheme. 

 
Recommendations 
 
The Board are asked to: 
 

1. Consider the approach set out to engaging with the Review. 
2. Undertake to consult the business community to inform its response to the Review. 

13 May 2021 
 

Government National Review of LEPs  

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



 

- Renewed focus on levelling up: the review wants to explore how regional institutions 
can address the long-tail of low productivity, help SMEs to grow and to export and to 
attract high value inward investment to our regions.  

- Ability to operate: the review will explore what functions LEPs need to better align 
business support services with skills, innovation, net zero, trade and export support. 

- Ability for LEPs to influence (rather than directly invest): the Government has 
already signalled its intention through its approach to the Levelling Up Fund, 
Community Renewal Fund and most likely the new Shared Prosperity Fund that LEPs 
will not be responsible, as they were with Local Growth Fund, for investing directly in 
local economies. The Government wants to build on the strategic influencing role LEPs 
should have. 

- Government Department sponsorship: LEPs have had a twin-sponsorship role in 
Whitehall with responsibility sitting across MHCLG and the Department for Business, 
Energy and Industrial Strategy. Whilst this works in theory it does not always deliver in 
practice. It is likely that there will be a clearer sponsorship of LEPs in the future from 
BEIS – signalling a greater focus on business growth and productivity engagement. 
 

 1.3 Timeline 
The review is currently live with stakeholder engagement led by the review team taking 
place through May and June. The LEP Network (the body comprised of all LEPs) has 
established a formal working group with the review team and input is being sought from a 
range of groups including the Metro Mayor’s M9 group. 
 
The Government intends to come to a detailed resolution by the Summer, to inform advice 
to Ministers and inform discussions regarding the Comprehensive Spending Review. 
Any changes would be expected to deliver a new operating model to be in place, at least in 
part, by financial year 2022/23. 
 

 1.4 The Review in the context of the Sheffield City Region LEP 
The Review of LEPs is important and will have an impact on how the LEP operates. 
However, it is expected that the changes brought forward following the review will be fairly 
limited in terms of the Sheffield City Region operating model. The review is not principally 
aimed at LEPs who have resolved the MCA/LEP model.  
 
In addition, it is already clear that LEPs will not be directly responsible for capital funds 
such as the Levelling Up Fund.  
 
We have already resolved issues around geography and developed and implemented a 
governance model that connects the private sector and key partners alongside the Mayoral 
Combined Authority – through which the LEP can inform and influence the investment 
priorities and approach taken.  
 
In particular, the LEP, through its relationship with the MCA, already works to inform and 
support: 
 

- Major transport infrastructure investment and public transport investment 

- Skills and education (particularly in support of delivery of the £36m p/a Adult Education 
Budget  

- Business growth and innovation work – including the pipeline of investment schemes 
and business support programmes 

- Housing and other enabling infrastructure activity.  
 

The potential shift in sponsorship to a more BEIS led agenda may help us make more 
progress on ensuring the Government’s approach to Place-Based R&D, sectoral support 
and supporting investment in delivering Net Zero align with our own ambitions on these 
agendas. 

Page 28



 

 
The direction of travel that the LEP review indicates is one in which the Sheffield City 
Region has already adopted and operationalised.  
 

2. Proposal and justification  
 

 2.1 It is proposed that the Sheffield City Region LEP work with the grain of the Government 
approach by: 
 

- Promoting and advocating the public-private sector model adopted in South Yorkshire 
that takes the strengths of the LEP model and connects them to the MCA approach.  

- Supports the reviews objectives to ensure that the influence of the private sector 
continues to be sought and involved in new governance models and is brought to bear 
on delivering economic growth. 

- Supporting a shift towards alignment of business support services, a greater emphasis 
on productivity growth and SMEs and supporting new high value inward investment.  

 
 2.2 It is proposed that we do this by engaging through a number of mechanisms, including: 

 

- LEP Network. The network has established a joint project between Government 
officials and LEPs to consider the key issues of form and function of LEPs. The SCR 
has full sight of this work and will input as required. 

- M9 group of Mayors. Engagement with the M9 group of Metro Mayor’s to ensure that 
the LEPs own particular context of operating within an MCA model is reflected. The M9 

- NP11 – the NP11 brings together the eleven LEPs from across the North of England. 
The review is interested in understanding whether bigger regional groupings of LEPs 
on certain issues can add value – most likely building upon the NP11 approach which 
seeks to identify issues of commonality at the Northern level where joint work can be of 
benefit (e.g. Northern Powerhouse Trade and Investment work and some joint 
innovation focus).  

- Working with wider business groups – we will engage informally with a network of 
business representative organisations in South Yorkshire to help shape their own 
responses to the Government in terms of the LEPs and how they should operate 
locally.  

- Informal engagement with senior officials in the Cities and Local Growth Unit.  
 

The Cities and Local Growth Unit in Government will also be hosting sessions to gather 
views from regional stakeholders. Invitees will include those in Business Related 
Organisations, Higher Education and Further Education. 
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 Do more – the LEP could make a formal submission to the Review. This approach is not 
recommended on the basis that the Government have established a number of dialogue-
based engagement mechanisms through the LEP Network and other established 
mechanisms. We are well engaged within these – and given the direction of travel 
proposed by the Review it is in line with our established model.  
 

 3.2 Do less – disengage from the process. This approach is not recommended on the basis 
that the LEP has an opportunity to promote and showcase the model we have adopted 
locally as an example of best practice and good governance.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
There are no direct financial implications arising from the recommendations under 
consideration. However, the longer-term implications of the LEP Review on funding for 
LEPs to fulfil their functions will need to be considered as the details of the review are 
published.  
 

 4.2 Legal 
There are no direct legal implications arising from the recommendations under 
consideration. The outcomes of the LEP Review may lead to some changes for LEPs with 
different operating environments to those in place in the SCR.  
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
As the implications of the Review become formalised and made public the LEP will need to 
ensure that risks relating to the management of legacy programmes from both a funding 
and management perspective are considered as part of the implementation. This is 
already an issue that has been raised at the national level by the LEP Network.  
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion 
There are no direct implications relating to this report.  
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 Engagement work will be limited to working directly with those partners identified in section 
2.2 with no pro-active public facing communications work on this issue being taken 
forward.  
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  None 
 

Report Author  Andrew Gates 
Post Assistant Director – External Affairs 

Officer responsible Stephen Batey 
Organisation Mayoral Combined Authority Executive 

Email Stephen.Batey@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 
Telephone  

 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street 
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 
 

 

Page 30

mailto:Stephen.Batey@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


 

 

 
 
 

 
1. 

 
Summary 
 

 1.1 Alongside the Spring Budget, the Government published Build Back Better: our plan for 
growth. It replaces the Industrial Strategy. It is the Government’s plan for the post-Brexit, 
post-pandemic world with technology, net-zero and innovation at its heart.  
 
The ‘three pillars’ of the strategy are infrastructure, skills, and innovation. These fit neatly 
with the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) and many of the government commitments listed 
correlate to interventions in the Renewal Action Plan (RAP). 
 

2. Proposal and justification  
 

 2.1 There are six thematic chapters of Build Back Better: 
 

 2.1.1 1. Infrastructure 
 
Government commitments include:  

• Expansion of DWP Jobcentre support (doubling the number of work coaches), 
additional investment into the Flexible Support Fund to provide direct support at a 
local level, and additional intensive support to those who have been unemployed 
for at least three months. 

Purpose of Report 

This paper provides a summary of the Government’s strategy for growth Build Back Better, assesses 
how the document fits with the SCR MCA and LEP’s priorities, and considers the implications of this.  

Thematic Priority 

Cross-cutting. 

Freedom of Information  

This paper will be available under the MCA Publication Scheme. 

Recommendations 

That LEP Board Members: 

• Review how the Government’s approach links to the Strategic Economic Plan and Renewal 
Action Plan. 

• Consider what representations and other engagement may be needed with Government to 
persuade and influence policy and secure funding, powers and other resources required to 
achieve agreed objectives.   

13 May 2021 

Build Back Better: Plan for Growth  

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



 

• Expansion of existing provision, providing funding to expand the number of 
traineeships and sector-based work academy placements, alongside further 
support for new apprentice hiring. 

 
Links to the SEP and RAP: 

• This has a strong focus for apprenticeships and FE colleges, and links with the 
RAP interventions, including Back to Work, Train to Work, and the Young People’s 
Skills Guarantee. The expansion of DWP services will support our commitments 
to help people remain economically active. We are working with DWP on the roll 
out of the new Restart programme for those who are 12 months unemployed. We 
are developing a case for use of £500k Flexible Support Funding to put four Skills 
Swap coaches in each SY local authority to help people more into growing sectors. 
Through the Back to Work programme, we are creating the South Yorkshire Jobs 
Fund that will provide a package of support for people out of work 6 months + 
including updating their skills and new work experience. We will also support our 
SY colleges in making use of £1.1m funding for traineeships to help young people 
progress into an apprenticeship as part of the Young People’s Skills Guarantee.  
Through our commissioning of devolved AEB, we will be supporting innovative 
programmes to help young people avoid becoming NEET and we will be 
supporting additional Sector Work Academy Programmes.  

 
 2.1.2 2. Skills 

 
Government commitments include: 

• Additional investment and reforming technical education to align the post-16 
technical education system with employer demand.  

• Introduce the Lifetime Skills Guarantee to enable lifelong learning through free 
fully funded Level 3 courses, rolling out employer-led skills bootcamps, and 
introducing the Lifelong Loan Entitlement.  

• Focus on the quality of apprenticeships and take steps to improve the 
apprenticeship system for employers, through enabling the transfer of unspent 
levy funds and allowing employers to front load apprenticeship training. 

 
Links to the SEP and RAP: 

• This has focus on apprenticeships and in-work training. It links with RAP 
interventions such as Back to Work, Train to Work, and the Young People’s Skills 
Guarantee. As part of our Train to Work commitment, we are focusing our AEB 
commissioning on ensuring that all residents in South Yorkshire have the skills 
they need for work and for fulfilled lives. We are focusing on high quality AEB 
funded activity to make sure people have the platform for progression to secure 
higher skills and better jobs. As part of this, we will be implementing the 
Government’s Lifetime Skills Guarantee which will enable any adult without a 
Level 3 qualification to undertake learning at that level at no financial cost to them, 
providing it is on the Government’s high value qualifications list. As part of the 
Young People’s Skills Guarantee, we will be working with partners to raise the 
profile of apprenticeships across South Yorkshire and to increase the number of 
enrolments and completions. We will be responding to the Government’s Flexible 
Apprenticeships consultation to ensure South Yorkshire’s needs are represented.  
We have now established a Careers and Enterprise Company hub within the 
LEP/MCA and are working through our network of Enterprise Co-coordinators to 
drive up the quality of advice for young people as the first step towards better 
CEIAG for all residents. 

 
 2.1.3 3. Innovation 

 
Government commitments include: 

Page 32



 

• Supporting incentives for pension funds to invest in high-growth companies, 
continued government support for start-ups and scale-ups, and a regulatory 
system that supports innovation.  

• Two new schemes to boost SME productivity: Help to Grow: Management, a new 
management training offer, and Help to Grow: Digital, a new scheme to help 
100,000 SME adopt productivity-enhancing software. 

 
Links to the SEP and RAP: 

• This relates to the ‘growth’ section of the SEP, and the LEP’s strategy to work 
more closely with entrepreneurs and high-growth businesses. It also connects with 
the RAP interventions of flexible investment and recapitalisation, leadership 
support and digital adoption. 

 
 2.1.4 4. Levelling Up 

 
Government commitments include: 

• Every region and nation to have at least one globally competitive city at its heart 
to help drive prosperity.  

• A new UK Infrastructure Bank in Leeds and relocating 22,000 Civil Service roles 
out of London.  

• Creating eight freeports across the country. 
 
Links to the SEP and RAP: 

• This is positioned around inter-, not intra-, regional inequality and thus focuses on 
strategies to bring greater prosperity into the region, for example through clusters 
of excellence like AMID, and through supporting ‘shovel ready’ investment as in 
the RAP, and international business links. 

 
 2.1.5 5. Net Zero 

 
Government commitments include: 

• Supporting up to 60,000 jobs in the offshore wind sector, 50,000 jobs in carbon 
capture, usage and storage (CCUS) and up to 8,000 in hydrogen.  

• Working with industry, aiming to generate 5GW of low carbon hydrogen production 
capacity and capture 10Mt CO2/year using CCUS by 2030. 

• Ending the sale of new petrol and diesel cars and vans in 2030. 
 
Links to the SEP and RAP: 

• This links with the vision in the SEP, RAP, and Energy Strategy for net-zero 
delivered through sustainable travel and shovel-ready investments. 

 
 2.1.6 6. Global Britain 

 
Government commitments include: 

• Cooperate with partners to inspire and shape international action on our domestic 
priorities, including through G7 Presidency and COP26.  

• Working internationally to strengthen the multilateral system and the World Trade 
Organization and using preferential agreements and bilateral trade relationships 
to directly expand trading opportunities for UK businesses.  

• A new export strategy to align our support for exporters with the plan for growth 
and sectoral priorities 

• Increasing UK Export Finance lending capacity. 
 
Links to the SEP and RAP: 

• The upcoming International Plan for the MCA and LEP will build on the SEP and 
explore and articulate the scope and opportunities for, globally competitive 
initiatives across South Yorkshire in line with. 

Page 33



 

 
 2.2 The policy implications for SCR MCA and LEP are positive, as Build Back Better 

correlates closely with the SEP and RAP. It provides a strong policy foundation to work 
with Government to deliver the objectives of the SEP and RAP.  
 
One major omission from the Government’s plan is that Build Back Better hardly even 
references health and wellbeing, which is a key priority for the SCR MCA and LEP, 
especially with the effects of the pandemic. This could be something to engage with the 
Government on.  
 
This plan for growth will likely inform how the Government will determine funding. It is 
promising that innovation is at the heart of this document, as it is in the SEP. The MCA 
and LEP may want to work closely with Government to convey that South Yorkshire is the 
ideal place to deliver on the levelling up objectives via their three pillars of this strategy:  
 

• Infrastructure – the RAP has several shovel ready projects  

• Skills – the government commitments in the strategy are very closely aligned to 
the RAP interventions and SEP ambitions 

• Innovation – is at the heart of the SEP’s growth objectives, and SCR is an ideal 
location for investment in translational research with assets such as the AMRC 
and AWRC. 
 

The Government’s plan for growth is an opportunity for the SCR MCA and LEP to work 
with Government to secure more funding and deliver on the levelling up ambition.     
 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 Do nothing. The LEP could decide to simply note the government’s plan. 
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
There are none at this stage; however, the Build Back Better plan could be a precursor to 
future funding streams such as the UK Shared Prosperity Fund.  
 

 4.2 Legal 
There are no direct legal implications to this paper. 
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
There are no specific risk implications to this paper. 
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
There are no specific risk implications to this paper at this stage 
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 N/A   
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  N/A 
 
REPORT AUTHOR  Felix Kumi-Ampofo  
POST  Assistant Director, Policy & Assurance  

Officer responsible Ruth Adams, Deputy Chief Executive  
Organisation Sheffield City Region 

Email felix-kumi-ampofo@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 

Page 34

mailto:felix-kumi-ampofo@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


 

Telephone T: 0114 220 3352 
 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad 
Street West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 

 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
1. Introduction 

 
 1.1 Made Smarter is the UK’s key national industrial digitalisation programme. It aims to drive 

innovation, rapid adoption and stronger leadership in industrial digitalisation, to support the 
UK’s ambition of becoming a world leader in the Fourth Industrial Revolution by 2030. 
 

 1.2 The programme came out of the industry-led Made Smarter Review which identified the 
opportunity to transform the UK’s manufacturing sector through the development and 
adoption of Industrial Digital Technology (IDT). The review stated that over a 10 year 
period, industrial digitalisation could boost UK manufacturing by £455bn; boost productivity 
by up to 30%; and create a net gain of 175,000 jobs whilst reducing CO2 emissions by 
4.5%. The Made Smarter Review found that there were a number of barriers to 
digitalisation: 
 

• An ineffective and confused support landscape for manufacturers does not 
provide a clear route to accessing trusted support or a sense of what ‘good’ 
looks like; 

• Firms have only a limited understanding of industrial digital technologies or 
awareness of the opportunities they create, and that this is combined with a 
perception that adopting these technologies is high risk and high cost; 

• SMEs lack key skills, including leadership and management, needed to exploit 
technology in their businesses and to make the case for investment; 
 

Purpose of Report 
 
This report outlines to the proposed approach to the delivery of the Yorkshire and Humber Made 
Smarter programme which is being led by the Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority. 
 
Thematic Priority 
 
The Made Smarter programme will facilitate and proactively support growth amongst existing firms in 
the Sheffield City Region. 
 
Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
This paper will be available under the MCA Publication Scheme. 
 
Recommendations 
 
Members are invited to discuss the content and approach to the proposals for the Yorkshire and 
Humber Made Smarter programme. 
 

13 May 2021 
 

Improving Business Productivity - Yorkshire and Humber Made Smarter Programme 

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



 

Key concerns about cybersecurity, loss of IP and challenges around standards and 
interoperability also prevent firms from investing in IDT. 
 

 1.3 In response, the £20m North West Made Smarter Adoption Pilot was launched in January 
2019. This 30-month pilot aimed to increase adoption of IDTs by manufacturing SMEs and 
realise £115m GVA boost over 4 years. 
 
The support model centred on intensive 1:1 advice and support delivered through the 5 
NW Growth Hubs (Greater Manchester, Liverpool City Region, Lancashire, Cumbria and 
Cheshire & Warrington) with the Greater Manchester Combined Authority as financial 
accountable body. 
 
Business advisers deliver advice and support for manufacturing businesses that includes 
an initial diagnostic, production line walks, digital road-mapping workshops. The most 
intensive support offers L&M training, student placements and matched grants. 
 
Delivered through local and regional delivery partners to ensure reach into a wide range of 
manufacturing SME businesses as well as coordination with existing local priorities and 
support offers. The pilot works with key partners in the region including Catapults, trade 
associations, and other national programmes, such as Be the Business and Business 
Basics. 
 
Initial results state that 84% of participants in the pilot have self-reported an increase in 
productivity as a result of programme and 51% have self-reported a significant positive 
impact (yet to be quantified). Evidence at this stage is limited due to the stage of the 
project and the longer timeframe required to realise outputs such as impacts on exports 
and emissions. 
 

 1.4 BEIS would like to replicate the pilot for 21/22 from the North West across other regions of 
the country that have a large manufacturing presence – Yorkshire & Humber, West 
Midlands and North East. 
 
Limited provision in the budget has meant the funds available for this scheme are 
significantly less than those provided to the North West with only £1.5m identified for the 
Yorkshire and Humber region for the financial year 2021/22 only. However, BEIS would 
like the pilot scale up schemes to include as many of the programme deliverables from the 
North West model as possible; this is to allow a meaningful evaluation of the pilots to take 
place and inform requests for future funding of the programme. 
 
BEIS confirmed this is an offer to the region and there is no appetite to run the scheme at 
a sub-regional level and that at this stage there is no guarantee of any future funding. 
 

2. Proposal and justification  
 

 2.1 SCRMCA will be acting as the lead organisation and accountable body for the regional 
Y&H programme. 
 
Initial proposals for the Y&H Made Smarter programme are to utilise local delivery partners 
to deliver the required MS outputs. Initial light touch diagnostics to assess suitability for the 
programme will be undertaken by each LEP’s Gateway/Growth Hub and where a business 
is not suited to the MS programme they will be referred onto more suitable support 
schemes. 
 
Where a business is identified as being likely to benefit from the MS programme they will 
be offered an opportunity to engage in a digital roadmapping exercise; this exercise 

Page 38



 

identifies the elements of the MS programme that will support the business to move 
forward on the digital agenda. 
 
 

Deliverables Output Delivered by 

1:1 engagements with businesses, where the 
minimum levels of data are collected (light touch 
diagnostic undertaken through Gateway/Growth 
Hub) 

500 SMEs Gateway 
Service/ Growth 

Hub 

Digital roadmapping sessions delivered (fully 
funded for participants) 

100 Procured 
partner 

Funded projects delivered: Intensive Technical 
Support (fully funded for participants) 

60 SMEs Procured 
partner 

Funded projects delivered: Cap Ex Grant 
awarded (£10k at 50% intervention rate) 

20 grants Procured 
partner 

Students placed in Digital Internships (£6k per 
business, fully funded) 

15 
internships 

Procured 
partner 

Leadership and Management training places 
filled (max of 3 month programme, fully funded 
for participants) 

50 
participants 

Procured 
partner 

Referral to other relevant support/interventions 
that sit outside of the Made Smarter programme 

200 
referrals 

Gateway 
Service/ Growth 

Hub 

 
Within the Sheffield City Region Renewal Action Plan there is a priority to support 
businesses in digital adoption and adaptation. Aligning the delivery of the RAP and Made 
Smarter programmes along with other business support offers will enable the BEIS funding 
to be maximised and enhance the support opportunities offered to our businesses. 
 

 2.2 As the accountable body for the Y&H Made Smarter programme, the SCRMCA will have a 
formal governance oversight and it is proposed that this sits with the Business Recovery 
and Growth Board as the most appropriate constituted thematic Board of the MCA. 
 
More regular oversight of the programme would be provided by the Y&H Made Smarter 
Steering group, commissioned by the BRGB and to include a broader regional 
membership. It is proposed that he Steering Group will be made up from 3 representatives 
each from SCR and LCR (as the larger bodies within the region) the other regional LEP 
areas will provide 2 representatives; as representatives from the LEP body it is envisaged 
that there will be a diverse mix of stakeholders from industry and academia. The terms of 
reference for this group are being developed and are based upon the ToR already in place 
for the Leeds City Region Made Smarter Board. 
 
The Y&H Made Smarter Working Group will be responsible for the operational 
implementation and delivery of the programme and will report to the Y&H Made Smarter 
Steering Group on a regular basis, providing the data and narrative on performance that is 
required for the steering group to fully undertake its role in testing, challenging and guiding 
the delivery of the Made Smarter support and interventions. This group is comprised of 
officer representation from each of the regional LEP areas including: Sheffield City Region, 
Leeds City Region, York and North Yorkshire, Hull & East Yorkshire and Greater 
Lincolnshire (for businesses in North and North East Lincolnshire) . 
 
The Sheffield City Region MCA will provide the co-ordination for the Y&H programme, 
acting as the conduit between the national and local area programmes and will have 
responsibility for the procurement and financial management aspects of the programme as 
well as providing secretariat support. 
 

Page 39



 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 Do nothing – this would mean the loss of opportunity for Sheffield City Region businesses 
to benefit from this scale up programme and reduce the input that the region can have in 
shaping any potential future delivery of the Made Smarter programme. 
 

 3.2 Do more – this programme has limited funding which must be delivered upon within the 
2021/22 financial year, the proposed deliverables in this paper are ambitious and any 
further stretch on these targets is considered to be unrealistic. 
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
Funding for this programme is being provided from BEIS for the 2021/22 financial year as 
part of a national pilot extension with Sheffield City Region being the accountable body for 
the Yorkshire and Humber region. Approval to accept the grant will be sought from the 
MCA Board in accordance with governance. 
 

 4.2 Legal 
Funding for this programme is to be provided using section 31 powers and for this purpose 
a memorandum of understanding is being developed. 
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
The programme will operate a risk register. 
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  
The design of the programme delivery is based around utilising local delivery partners who 
have an understanding of the Y&H context and can support businesses to commit to the 
social value that the programme can engender in taking on student internships for 
example. 
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 Marketing and communications for the programme is primarily defined within the national 
Made Smarter programme, with a regional focus on building awareness and engagement 
of the programme with businesses and networks. 
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  None 
 

 
Report Author  Helen Kemp 

Post Director of Business & Skills 
Officer responsible Helen Kemp 

Organisation SCR MCA 
Email Helen.kemp@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 

Telephone 07394 400664 
 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street 
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
Other sources and references: 
 
 

Page 40

mailto:Helen.kemp@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


 

 
 
 
 

 
1. Introduction 

 
 1.1 The UK Government has announced £220 million investment in the UK Community Renewal 

Fund (UKCRF) in its budget on 3 March 2021. The UKCRF is the pre-cursor to the UK 
Shared Prosperity Fund. 
 
The UKCRF aims to support people and communities most in need across the UK to pilot 
programmes and new approaches and will invest in skills, community and place, local 
business and supporting people into employment.  
 
There is a maximum of £3 million of UKCRF available per place (local authority area) and 
eligible project applicants include business support organisations; voluntary, community 
and social enterprise organisations; and education providers, including Colleges and 
Universities. 
 
Sheffield City Region Mayoral Combined Authority has been designated as a lead authority 
by the UK Government and is expected to submit a programme of schemes to the 
Government on the 18th June. 

Purpose of Report 
 
This report updates the LEP Board on the Government’s Community Renewal Fund programme and 
the work underway by the MCA Executive and local council partners to develop a response for 
submission to the Government.   
 
Thematic Priority 
 
The contents of this report are cross-cutting across all the LEP’s thematic priority areas.  

Freedom of Information  

This paper will be available under the MCA Publication Scheme. 

 
Recommendations 
 
The Board are asked to note the objectives of the Government’s Community Renewal Fund, the 
timescales associated with the Fund and the approach taken by the MCA to deliver a successful set of 
bids.  

13 May 2021 
 

Community Renewal Fund update 

Page 41

Agenda Item 10



 

 1.2 Timeline 
 
The process for the development, prioritisation and appraisal, submission and then 
delivery of the projects is extremely compressed.  
 

21st April Open call for applications by MCA 

26th April Webinar and comms underway 

7th May Notification of South Yorkshire or multi-area bids to local authority teams 
and MCA. 

26th May Deadline for project submissions to local authorities. 

9th June  Deadline for local authority project shortlist submissions to MCA. 

18th June Deadline for lead authority to submit application to Government. 

End July  Successful projects confirmed for delivery 

Projects must be delivered by March 2022 
 

   
 1.3 Eligibility 

 
All places can apply for the investment from the UKCRF. The Government criteria 
indicates that Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham are priority places. Applications from 
other places, such as Sheffield that demonstrate a strong alignment with strategic fit and 
good delivery/effectiveness may also receive funding. 
 
The UKCRF will prioritise bids that target the priority places, alongside a good contribution 
to strategic fit and delivery/effectiveness.  
 
Projects that cover all South Yorkshire or more than one area are also eligible. 
 

2. Proposal and justification  
 

 2.1 Our approach 
The principle underpinning our approach to developing a strong set of projects is that 
working with the MCA our local places are best placed to develop and prioritise proposals, to 
convene local partners and to understand and navigate complex delivery environments.  
On that basis we have developed a process that puts local councils at the heart of the 
process whilst ensuring that the strategic focus established in the Strategic Economic Plan 
and Renewal Action Plan drive the development of schemes. 
 

 2.1 Strategic fit and co-design where possible 
In the MCA ‘call’ document and associated guidance we have made clear that bidders will 
show in-depth knowledge of the opportunities and challenges of the local area covered in 
their bids as well as strategic fit against the national investment priorities: 
 
• Investment in skills 
• Investment for local business 
• Investment in communities and place 
• Supporting people into employment 
 
As well as bringing forward projects that deliver against key economic growth priorities 
outlined in the Strategic Economic Plan and Renewal Action Plan. 
 
We have also set out that we particularly welcome the development of projects which can 
demonstrate the ability to expand or scale up within South Yorkshire and that utilise 
innovative approaches and could also be used to inform future SPF rounds. 
 
Where possible, partners are being encouraged to co-design and co-produce schemes 
with the council area. 

Page 42



 

3. Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1 A centrally managed process – the MCA could have adopted a highly prescriptive and 
centralised approach to the development of CRF projects. This approach has not been 
endorsed on the basis that the timescales do not allow for the development of new SY 
wide schemes, that many of the objectives related to CRF are inherently local in nature – 
and that the capacity and capability through a joint MCA and local council approach is 
most likely to yield a successful result. 
 

 3.2 Do nothing / less – the MCA has a responsibility as the accountable body responsible for 
CRF to ensure that the process we undertake is rigorous, robust and transparent. The 
approach being pursued secures those objectives whilst giving the greatest opportunity for 
local schemes to emerge. This approach also ensures that the MCA and local partners are 
well placed to develop proposals for the Shared Prosperity Fund from 2022/23 onwards.  
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
There are no direct financial implications for the LEP arising from this paper. The MCA will 
submit a final prioritised list of schemes on the 18th June. 
 

 4.2 Legal 
There are no direct legal implications for the LEP arising from this paper. The MCA as 
accountable body will be expected to enter into contractual arrangements with successful 
projects once the Government have reviewed submissions. This process will be 
undertaken through the MCA governance processes.  
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
None 
 

 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion 
The Strategic Economic Plan and Renewal Action Plan have a strong inclusion focus. We 
expect that projects brought forward by partners locally will set out how they will deliver for 
the particular needs of communities across South Yorkshire.  
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 It is critical that potential bidders for CRF are informed on the process and aware of how to 
submit schemes. We have made all information available online and will continue to 
promote the opportunity publicly and through local networks.  
The first webinar run attracted over 90 attendees from groups including FE, training 
providers, the voluntary and community sector and higher education.  
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  None 
 

Report Author  Andrew Gates 
Post Assistant Director – External Affairs 

Officer responsible Stephen Batey 
Organisation Mayoral Combined Authority Executive 

Email Stephen.Batey@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 
Telephone  

 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street 
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 

Page 43

mailto:Stephen.Batey@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk


 

 
Other sources and references: 
 

 

Page 44



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1. 

 
Introduction 
 

 1.1 The Local Growth Fund programme was a 6-year government funded investment 
programme. Over £360m of new funding was secured through three bidding rounds, with 
money awarded to the MCA on behalf of the LEP. Notably, in a break with previous 
approaches, funding was awarded with significant local flexibilities over its deployment. 
Financial year 2020/21 was the final year in which new funding was received. This report 
provides an update on performance over the year, and details how residual activity will be 
wound down in 2021/22.  

   
2. Proposal and justification  

 
 2.1 LGF Final Position 2020/21 

The total LGF spend target for 2020/21 was set at £43.2m.  Close working with delivery 
partners towards the end of the financial year enabled the region to meet the annual target.  
 

Purpose of Report 
 
Financial year 2020/21 was the final funded year of the Local Growth Fund (LGF programme). This 
paper seeks to inform LEP Board members of the Local Growth Fund (LGF) year end 2020/21 position 
and the wind down of activity in 2021/22. 
 
Thematic Priority 
 
Cross cutting - financial 
 
Freedom of Information and Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 

This paper will be made available under the MCA publication scheme.  
 

Recommendations 

Members are asked to 
1. Note the 2020/21 Year End position; and,  
2. Note the forecast 2021/22 activity. 

 

13th May 2021 
 

Local Growth Fund Update (Year end 2020/21 and 2021/22 Programme Activity)  

Page 45

Agenda Item 11



 

 2.2 LGF programme position 2021/22 
Whilst c. £360m was awarded to the region in total, some funding has been recycled over 
time. Investment loans made a number of years ago have been repaid, allowing funding to 
be recycled back into further investment.  
 

  This recycling of funding has allowed the MCA to run an over-programming position, and 
accounts for the residual activity that will now winddown in the current year. 
 

  The programme position can be summarised as: 
 

  £m 
LGF Grant Received £362.01 
Grant Recycled £19.09 
Total Funding Available £381.10 

    
Allocated to:   
Completed Spend on Projects £322.87 
Residual LGF Activity £13.16 
DfT Majors (Parkway Widening) £38.22 
Total Commitments £374.25 
    
Residual Recycled LGF Funding £6.85 

 

  
 
 
 
2.4.  
     

 
The residual LGF funding shown above may be supplemented in time through the repayment 
of further loans to business and other partners. 
 
LGF programme position 2021/22 
Throughout the year the prospect of funded activity falling outside the funding window has  

  A list of projects with spend in 2021/22 is attached at Appendix A. 
Through the change control process projects are reporting delays in achieving their outputs 
and outcomes due to the pandemic and where recommended these will be considered by the 
MCA.  The MCA Exec will continue to report to the LEP Board on any risks to the 
programme. 

 
3. 

 
Consideration of alternative approaches 
 

 3.1      Do Nothing – this option and the MCA, on behalf of the LEP Board, is obliged to manage the 
LGF grant money to meet its contractual obligations.  
 

4. Implications 
 

 4.1 Financial 
This paper set out the indicative LGF budget for 2021/22. The total expenditure of the LGF 
programme will continue to be managed so that it will not exceed the financial resources 
available.  
 

 4.2 Legal 
Prior to awarding the grants, the MCA exec ensures arrangements are put in place to comply 
with the grant conditions. The legal implications of grant are fully considered by a 
representative of the Monitoring Officer. 
 

 4.3 Risk Management 
High risk schemes will continue to be monitored and reported back to the LEP and MCA. 
Issues detailing delays due to COVID-19 are being highlighted to MHCLG. 
 

Page 46



 

 
 4.4 Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion  

None as a direct result of this paper. 
 

5. Communications 
 

 5.1 The current position reported in this paper has been communicated to MHCLG prior to 
publication. 
 

6. Appendices/Annexes 
 

 6.1  Appendix A – LGF Expenditure 2021/22 
 

Report Author  Sue Sykes 
Post AD – Programme and Performance Unit 

Officer responsible Gareth Sutton 
Organisation MCA Executive 

Email Gareth.Sutton@sheffieldcityregion.org.uk 
Telephone 0114 220 5000 

 
Background papers used in the preparation of this report are available for inspection at: 11 Broad Street 
West, Sheffield S1 2BQ 
 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



  Appendix A 

 

   

LGF Expenditure 21/22  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  

Partner 
Organisation 

21/22 Spend 
(£m) 

M1 Junction 37 Ph2 –Economic Growth 
Corridor (Claycliffe) 

BMBC £4.01 

Greasbrough Road Junctions RMBC £1.75 

Digital Engineering Skills Development 
Network 

Sheffield College £1.13 

BIF Projects     

Curvulux UK Ltd Private Sector £4.71 

Lontra Limited Private Sector £0.70 

Conducive Transfers Ltd Private Sector £0.13 

Harry Needle Railroad Company Private Sector £0.15 

First Customer Contact Limited Private Sector £0.41 

MetLase Ltd Private Sector £0.05 

Robson Site Services Private Sector £0.02 

Fernite of Sheffield Ltd Private Sector £0.04 

Totals   £13.10 

   

   

 

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
1. The COVID pandemic and our recovery efforts  

 
After more than a year of restrictions, with more than half of the country’s population now 
vaccinated and a national roadmap for lifting lockdown in place the light at the end of the tunnel 
grows brighter. With COVID having impacted each and every one of us, huge sacrifices made and 
the tragedy of 127,000 deaths the recovery and renewal effort is critical.  
 
It remains critical that the remaining stages of lockdown easing are based on solid science and 
implemented at a cautious pace. COVID-19 has shown that the economy and health are 
inextricably linked. We have to get case rates down before we reopen the economy – not just to 
protect the NHS and save lives, but also for better economic outcomes.  
 
Whilst infections rates in South Yorkshire have decreased significantly, they remain at a higher 
level than the national average – a solid indicator that COVID has hit the most deprived areas of 
our country hardest.  It is in places like South Yorkshire where a higher proportion of people 
cannot afford to lose income and cannot work from home that infection rates remain higher. 
 
At our last meeting of the MCA, South Yorkshire leaders and I agreed an £860m New Deal for 
South Yorkshire stimulus package. Designed to kickstart the region’s recovery from COVID, its 
ambition is a stronger, greener and fairer South Yorkshire for all.  
 
The £860m package of investment includes:  
 

 The South Yorkshire Young People’s Pledge. A promise by Leaders and I to help the 
region’s young people get around with discounted bus and tram fares, with support to improve 
their skills and find work. 
 

 Almost £360m funding for South Yorkshire’s recovery over the next 12 months, investing 
in infrastructure, new homes, apprenticeships, flood defences, better transport links – to create 
jobs, revitalise high streets and town centres and protect the environment. 
 

 From 2022, creating the South Yorkshire Renewal Fund, worth up to £500m by drawing 
down the MCA’s gainshare funds to unlock investment and transform the region. This will 
roughly be split between £300m for places, including infrastructure and transport; and £200m 
for jobs and skills. 

 

May 2021 

Mayor’s Update 

Purpose of Report 

To provide LEP Board Members with an update on key Mayoral activity relating to the economic 
agenda. 

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 12



 

Locally elected leaders, and I are dedicated to working together, with our LEP partners and 
stakeholders from the public, private and third sectors to make these ambitions a reality.  
 

2. 
 
 

The National Bus Strategy 
 
The challenges facing the provision of a high quality, attractive, affordable and viable bus network 
that puts the passenger first, have been brought into an even starker focus over the last year. As 
the South Yorkshire Bus Review highlighted, even before the pandemic these challenges were 
already significant. But COVID has only exacerbated trends away from bus use.   
 
In March, Government published its much-anticipated National Bus Strategy that proposed 
fundamental changes to the way in which the system operates. Whilst I support this Strategy’s 
ambitions, it is clear that they will only be achieved with very sizeable and sustained investment in 
the network and I therefore I will continue to make the case for this.  
 
MCA members and I are considering the implications of the National Bus Strategy and will discuss 
this and our response at our next meeting.    
 

3.  Net Zero  
 
Building on the commitment of the Yorkshire Leaders Board to work together on shared priorities, 
the Yorkshire and Humber Climate Commission has now been formed. An independent advisory 
body, it brings actors from the public, private and third sectors together to identify, support and 
guide ambitious climate actions across the region.  
 
The Commission has four inter-related aims: 
 

 To foster climate resilience and adaptation to climate risks and impacts 

 To support rapid progress towards net zero carbon emissions 

 To encourage a just and inclusive transition and climate actions that leave no-one and 
nowhere behind 

 To promote sustainability and climate actions that also protect nature and biodiversity. 
 
As the Vice Chair of the Commission I attended its (virtual) launch event in March along with 400 
others. One of the Commission’s first priorities is to develop a regional submission for COP26 that 
will take place in Glasgow, later this year.  
 
Our Net Zero Partnership Board, established with business and other sector representatives from 
across South Yorkshire will also have a part to play in what is a unique and critically important 
opportunity to ensure that the region and the country leads the way in tacking the climate 
emergency, ensuring a green recovery from COVID and a pathway to Net Zero.   
 

  

  

  

 

Page 48



 

Purpose of Report 

To provide LEP Board Members with a general update on activity being undertaken by the LEP 
outside of the agenda items under discussion. 

 

 

 

 

May 2021 

Chief Executive’s Update 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
1.  Quarterly Economic Survey and The Skills for Recovery in South Yorkshire Report 

 
The MCA and LEP have been working with the region’s Chambers of Commerce to gain 
intelligence on business skills gaps and needs. This work, which has been part-funded by the DfE, 
has included focus groups and data from current and previous Quarterly Economic Surveys. The 
Report has found that businesses are in a strong position for growth over the coming 12-18 
months. However, shifts in the operating environment over the past 12 months have caused many 
businesses to review business models, meaning that skills requirements coming out of the 
pandemic may not necessarily be the same as those going into it. 
 

2. Chambers of Commerce Policy Director 
 
South Yorkshire’s three Chambers of Commerce (Doncaster, Rotherham & Barnsley, Sheffield) 
have jointly appointed a Policy Director to work across the region. The creation of this role further 
strengthens and unifies the policy functions of the local chambers. The MCA and LEP continue to 
build on its strong relationship with its local chambers and look forward to working with the new 
Policy Director. 
 

3. DfE Flexi-apprenticeships consultation 
 
The LEP and MCA will respond to a DfE consultation which seeks views on its plans for flexi-job 
apprenticeship schemes as a means to increase the use of apprenticeships in certain sectors and 
professions. Portable apprenticeships schemes enable apprentices to move between employers in 
industries where short-term contracts are the norm. The MCA response will consider how flexi-job 
apprenticeship schemes could support the growth of apprenticeships in South Yorkshire. 
 

4. Response to the Northern Culture APPG 
 

 The MCA is working with partners across South Yorkshire’s Arts, Culture and Heritage sector on a 
submission to a Northern Culture Inquiry by the Northern Culture APPG. The Inquiry intends to 
explore the question: ‘What does Northern Culture need to rebuild, rebalance and recover?’ and 
asks for evidence on how to level-up opportunities to increase diversity, sustainability, accessibility 
and resilience in Northern Culture. This is an opportunity to highlight both the challenges and 
successes of our work and will also provide the MCA with more evidence to help future lobbying 
and funding applications.  
 
 
 
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 13



 

 
 
 
 

5. Business Advisory Group 
 
The Covid-19 Business Input Group was established at the start of the crisis to respond to the 
immediate and unfolding impacts of the pandemic on businesses and the workforce. As the region 
moves from crisis response to longer term recover and growth, the LEP recognises an ongoing 
need to bring key business representative organisations together to get their latest positions, share 
information and insights, and to help shape the region’s economic response. The group will 
continue to meet on a regular basis and will be chaired by LEP Chair James Muir. Areas for future 
substantive discussion include physical regeneration and urban vitality, business growth, 
innovation, trade and investment, skills and employment, and government engagement.  

Page 50


	Agenda
	3 Notes of Last Meeting
	4 Active Travel Plan - Progress Report
	5 Supporting the Development of Employee Ownership - SCR Ownership Hub
	Appendix 1 - The Ownership Hub Prospectus

	6 Inclusion and Social Value in South Yorkshire
	7 Government National Review of LEPs
	8 Build Back Better - Plan for Growth
	9 Improving business productivity - Regional Made Smarter programme
	10 Action for Bids to the Community Renewal Fund
	11 Local Growth Fund Update (Year end 2020/21 and 2021/22 Programme Activity)
	Appendix A - LGF Expenditure 21-22

	12 Mayoral Update
	13 Chief Executive's Update



